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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

MELISSA TRAVIS, an individual, on

behalf of herself and those similarly . CaseNo. 2:19¢cv92
situated, :
Plaintiff,
V.

AUDIT SYSTEMS INC.,,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF REMOVAL

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on this date, Defendant Audit Systems, Inc., hereby
removes the above-captioned matter to this Court from the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny
County, and in support thereof avers as follows:

1. Defendant Audit Systems, Inc., is the defendant in a civil action originally filed on
or about December 6, 2018, in the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, titled Melissa
Travis v. Audit Systems, Inc., and docketed to Case No. GD-18-016034.

2. This removal is timely under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b) as Defendant was served with
process by certified mail on January §, 2019.

3. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446, attached hereto as Exhibit A are copies of all process,
pleadings and orders received by Defendant in the state court action.

4. The United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania has
original jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, in that Plaintiff has filed claims
against Defendant alleging violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692,

et seq.
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5. On this date, Defendant has provided notice of this removal to all parties and to the
Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania.
WHEREFORE, Defendant removes this case to the United States District Court for the

Western District of Pennsyvlania.

Respectfully submitted,
MESSER STRICKLER, LTD.

By: /s/ Lauren M. Burnette
LAUREN M. BURNETTE, ESQUIRE
PA Bar No. 92412
12276 San Jose Blvd., Ste. 720
Jacksonville, FL 32223
(904) 527-1172
(904) 683-7353 (fax)
Iburnette@messerstrickler.com
Counsel for Defendant

Dated: January 28, 2019
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on January 28, 2019, a true copy of the foregoing document was served on
the persons below via electronic means:

Eugene D. Frank

Law Offices of Eugene D Frank, P.C.
500 Grant Street, Ste. 2900
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

Counsel for Plaintiff

Court of Common Pleas
Allegheny County

436 Grant Street
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

MESSER STRICKLER, LTD.

By: /s/ Lauren M. Burnette
LAUREN M. BURNETTE, ESQUIRE
PA Bar No. 92412
12276 San Jose Blvd., Ste. 720
Jacksonville, FL 32223
(904) 527-1172
(904) 683-7353 (fax)
Iburnette@messerstrickler.com
Counsel for Defendant

Dated: January 28, 2019
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EXHIBIT A
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NOTICE OF SUIT TO SHERIFF OF ALLEGHENY CO.
You are hereby notified that on 12/06/2018
a COMPLAINT has been filed in this case
and you are required to serve the same on or before the
03/06/2019
Michael McGeever, Director

Department of Court Records
COMPLAINT IN CIVIL ACTION

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

Plaintiff(s) Case Number:

GD-18-016034
Travis, Melissa

undefined , Type of pleading:
Complaint

Filed on behalf of:
Travis Melissa

Frank D Eugene
(Name of filing party)

Defendant(s) VS

- : Counsel of Record

D Individual, If Pro Se

Audit Systems Incorporated,

4]

Name, Address and Telephone Number:
Frank D Eugene

412 3664276
Attorney's State 1D: 89862

T

Michael McGeever, Director, Department of Court Records
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For Prothonotary Use Only:

Docket No: :gv’f-g

The information collected on this form is used solely for court administration purposes. This form does not
supplement or replace the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law or rules of court.

Commencement of Action:
Complaint 1 Writ of Summons
[ Transfer from Another Jurisdiction

[ petition
[C] Declaration of Taking

Lead Plaintiff’s Name:
Melissa Travis et al.

Lead Defendant’s Name:
Audit Systems Incorporated

[ No

Are money damages requested? [ Yes

[Jwithin arbitration limits
K] outside arbitration limits

Dollar Amount Requested:
(check one)

Is this a Class Action Suit? Yes [ No

Is this an MDJ Appeal? I Yes El No

Name of Plaintiff/Appellant’s Attorney: Eugene D, Frank, Esquire

] Check here if you have no attorney (are a Self-Represented [Pro Se] Litigant)

Nature of the Case;

Place an “X” to the left of the ONE case category that most accurately describes your

PRIMARY CASE. If you are making more than one type of claim, check the one that
you consider most important,

: TORT (do not include Mass Tort)

1 intentional

[ Malicious Prosecution

] Motor Vehicle

[C] Nuisance

[C] Premises Liability

[ Product Liability (does not include
mass tort)

[ Stander/Libel/ Defamation

1 Other:
FDCPA claims

CONTRACT (do not include Judgments)
] Buyer Plaintiff
[ Debt Collection: Credit Card
] Debt Collection: Other

] Employment Dispute:
Discrimination
1 Employment Dispute: Other

| MASS TORT

[ Asbestos

] Tobacco

[ Toxic Tort - DES
] Toxic Tort - Implant
[] Toxic Waste

] Other:

CIVIL APPEALS
Administrative Agencies
Board of Assessment
Board of Elections
[C] Dept. of Transportation
[ statutory Appeal; Other

C] Zoning Board
O other:

REAL PROPERTY
[ Ejectment

[C] Other Professional:

[ Other: 1 Eminent Domain/Condemnation
[ Ground Rent
71 Landlord/Tenant Dispute

it 1 Mortgage Foreclosure: Residential
| PROFESSIONAL LIABLITY ] Mortgage Foreclosure: Commercial

] Dental [[] Partition

] Legal ] Quiet Title

Medical [ Other:

MISCELLANEQUS

] Common Law/Statutory Arbitration

[[] Declaratory Judgment

[[] Mandamus

] Non-Domestic Relations
Restraining Order
Quo Warranto
Replevin

O other:

Updated 1/1/2011
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

MELISSA TRAVIS, an individual, on CIVIL DIVISION
behalf of herself and those similarly situated,
NO: GD-18-
Plaintiffs,
TYPE OF PLEADING:

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
VS.

AUDIT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED,

Defendant.

FILED ON BEHALF OF:
Melissa Travis, an individual, on
behalf of herself and those
similarly situated

COUNSEL OF RECORD:
Eugene D. Frank, Esquire
PA ID # 89862

Law Offices of Eugene D. Frank, P.C.
500 Grant Street, Suite 2900

Pittsburgh, PA 15219 . 3

(412) 366-4276 (office) ' ==

(412) 366-4305 (fax) | = “1
i perri
e I

M

ot o [’:}
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL DIVISION

Melissa Travis, an individual, on behalf of Case No. GD-18-
herself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
Vs.
Audit Systems Incorporated,

Defendant.

NOTICE TO DEFEND

You have been sued in court. If you wish to defend against the claims set forth in
the following pages, you must take action within twenty (20) days after this complaint
and notice are served, by entering a written appearance personally or by attorney and
filing in writing with the court your defenses or objections to the claims set forth against
you. You are warned that if you fail to do so the case may proceed without you and a
judgment may be entered against you by the court without further notice for any money
claimed in the complaint or for any other claim or relief requested by the plaintiff. You
may lose money or property or other rights important to you.

YOU SHOULD TAKE THIS PAPER TO YOUR LAWYER AT ONCE. IF YOU
DO NOT HAVE A LAWYER, GO TO OR TELEPHONE THE OFFICE SET FORTH
BELOW. THIS OFFICE CAN PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION ABOUT
HIRING A LAWYER.

IF YOU CANNOT AFFORD TO HIRE A LAWYER, THIS OFFICE MAY BE ABLE
TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION ABOUT AGENCIES THAT MAY
OFFER LEGAL SERVICES TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS AT A REDUCED FEE OR NO
FEE,

Lawyer Referral Service
Allegheny County Bar Association
11" Floor Koppers Building
436 Seventh Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
Telephone: (412) 261-5555
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL DIVISION

| Melissa Travis, an individual, on behalf of | Case No. GD-18-
herself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS.
Audit Systems Incorporated,

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

AND NOW, comes the Plaintiff, Melissa Travis, on behalf of herself and all
those similarly situated, by and through undersigned counsel, and files this Class Action
Complaint, and in support thereof avers as follows:

Introduction

1 This is a class action for damages brought by consumers pursuant to the
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq. (the “FDCPA”), which
prohibits debt collectors from engaging in harassing, abusive, false, deceptive, misleading
and/or unfair debt collection practices.

2 Defendant, Audit Systems Incorporated (“Defendant”), systematically
sends initial collection letters (the “Initial Written Communications™) to consumers on behalf
of others in an attempt to collect consumer debts and said letters are required to contain a
notice pursuant to the FDCPA and, specifically, 15 U.S.C. § 1692g (the “Notice™).

3. The Initial Written Communications contain language which invites the
consumers to call Defendant to dispute the debt or otherwise leaves a consumer uncertain

or confused as to what she/he/they must do to effectively dispute the debt.
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4, As such, Defendant is subject to strict liability pursuant to the FDCPA for
sending the Initial Written Communications to Plaintiff and other Pennsylvania consumers
in an attempt to collect consumer debits,

5. Accordingly, Plaintiff, Melissa Travis (the “Plaintiff”), individually, on
behalf of herself and those similarly situated, seeks relief pursuant to the FDCPA.

Jurisdiction and Venue

6. Jurisdiction of this Court arises out of, but not limited to, the Defendant’s
violation(s) of the FDCPA.

% At all relevant times herein, Defendant was engaged in the collection of
delinquent consumer debts within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania including, but not
limited to, Allegheny County and venue is proper in Allegheny County, Pennsylvania
pursuant to the Pennsylvania Rules of Civil Procedure.

Parties

8. At all times mentioned herein, Plaintiff is a natural person and consumer
and is a citizen of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, County of Alleghen)-/. At all
relevant times herein, Plaintiff was allegedly obligated to pay a defaulted debt as
specifically set forth herein and Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined in the FDCPA.

9. Defendant is a corporation established in the State of Florida with a
business address located at 3696 Ulmerton Road, Suite 200, Clearwater, FL. 33762.
Defendant conducts business and/or attempts to collect delinquent consumer debts
throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, including, but not limited to, the County
of Allegheny.

10. Defendant is a “debt collector” as defined in the FDCPA and, at all times

relevant herein, acted by and/or through their owners, managers, officers, shareholders,



Case 2:19-cv-00092-MJH Document 1-1 Filed 01/28/19 Page 8 of 24

authorized representatives, partners, employees, agents, affiants, attorneys, affiliates and/or
workmen.

11. Defendant regularly engages in collecting delinquent consumer debts and
regularly uses the mails and/or the telephone in an attempt to collect, directly or indirectly,
delinquent consumer debts allegedly owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another.

12. Defendant’s principal purpose is the collection of delinquent debts.

13.  According to Defendant’s website, it provides “Third Party Collections
Servicing” and states as follows: “ASI provides third party collection services to assist our
clients with collecting delinquent and charged off accounts receivable. We understand the
challenges faced by consumers...”

Factual Allegations

14. At all relevant times herein, the related delinquent consumer debt was an
Advanced Integrated Medical (“AIM”) account incurred by Plaintiff as a result of personal
medical services (the “Debt”). At all relevant times herein, the Debt was a consumer
“debt” as defined in the FDCPA. The Debt was incurred based on purchases related to
and/or used primarily for personal, family and/or household purposes.

15, On a date better known to Defendant, AIM assigned, transferred, or

otherwise placed the Debt with Defendant for the purpose of attempting to collect the same
from Plaintiff.

16. On Deccfnber 6, 2017, Defendant intentionally mailed a collection letter to
Plaintiff in an attempt to collect the Debt (the “Letter”). Thereafter, Plaintiff received and

reviewed the Letter at the relevant date/time. A true and correct copy of the Letter
(redacted) is attached hereto, incorporated herein, and marked as Exhibit “A.” The Letter

is a “communication” as defined in the FDCPA given the Letter conveyed information

regarding the Debt, implied the existence thereof, and attempted to induce payment of the
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same from Plaintiff. The Letter was also the initial communications sent by Defendant to
Plaintiff regarding the Debt.

17. Upon information and belief, the Letter is a template or generated form
and sent to numerous consumers.

18. Amongst other content on the Letter was in bold in the top left-hand
corner the name of Defendant and a toll free phone number. What is not in bold is the
address of Defendant in the same location. See Exhibir A.

19. As a result of the Letter being the initial written communication sent by
Defendant to Plaintiff for the Debt, the Letter was required to contain the Notice, which
was placed on the Letter right after the instructions on how to make a payment online.
See Exhibit A.

20. The Notice starts with “Unless you notify this office within 30 days after
receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of the debt or any portion thereof, this
office will assume this debt to be valid.” See Exhibir A.

21. In drafting the Letter, Defendant intentionally included and/or approved
the following language: “If the account is outstanding due to a billing error or other
problem, please feel free to contact one of our representatives with questions at 1-800-741-
1696 during business hours of Monday through Thursday 8:00am — 9:00pm EST and
Friday 8:00am- 7:00pm EST” (the “Invite”). See Exhibit A.

22, The phone number contained in the Invite is the same phone number
contained in bold near the top lefi-hand corner of the Letter where the address is not in
bold. See Exhibit A.

23, Upon information and belief, Defendant sent the same template or
generated form letter to many consumers throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

in an attempt to collect delinquent consumer debts.
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Class Action Allegations

24.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference the above paragraphs of this Class
Action Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
25.  Plaintiff brings this class action individually, on behalf of herself and
those similarly situated in compliance with the Pennsylvania Rules of Civil Procedure.
26. Plaintiff proposes to define the class as follows:
a) all consumers residing in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;
b) who were sent a collection letter in the form of Exhibit A, attached
to the Class Action Complaint, or substantially similar from
Defendant, which was not returned as undeliverable by the U.S.

Post Office;

c) in an attempt to collect any obligation or alleged obligation
incurred for personal, family, or household purposes;

d) within one (1) year prior to the filing of this action through the date
of class certification.

27.  This action relates to template or generated form collection letters that are
sent to numerous consumers throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, including,
but not limited to, the County of Allegheny.

28. Plaintiff does not know the exact size or identities of the class, as
Defendant maintains exclusive control of such information. However, Plaintiff believes
that the class includes approximately hundreds of individuals residing in Pennsylvania
whose identities can be readily determined from Defendant’s business records. Therefore,
the proposed class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.

29 All class members have been affected by the same conduct. The common
questions of law and fact predominate over any questions affecting only individual
members of the class. These questions include, but are not limited to:

a) whether Plaintiff and class members received a collection letter in

the form of Exhibit A, attached to the Class Action Complaint, or
substantially similar from Defendant;
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b) whether such collection letters violate the FDCPA entitling
Plaintiff and class members to statutory damages for such
violations.

30.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the class and do not conflict
with the interests of any other class members. Plaintiff and the members of the class were
uniformly subjected to the same conduct.

31 Plaintiff's claims are based on the same factual and legal theories with all
class members being consumers who defaulted on a consumer debt and received an
improper collection letter from Defendant.

32. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the class members’ interests
and has retained counsel who are qualified to pursue this litigation. Plaintiff’s counsel are
experienced in prosecuting claims for consumer abuse pursuant to the FDCPA and are
competent to represent the class.

38- A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of the class
members’ claims as Congress specifically envisioned class actions as a principal means of
enforcing the FDCPA. See 15 U.S.C. § 1692k. The members of the class are generally
unsophisticated consumers, whose rights will not be vindicated in the absence of a class
action. Prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the class would also
create the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications resulting in the establishment of
inconsistent or varying standards and would not be in the best interest of judicial economy.

34, A class action regarding the issues in this case does not create any
problems of manageability.

35. A class action will allow similarly situated consumers to prosecute
common claims efficiently and adjudicate small claims simultaneously without the need for
numerous individual actions and the associated effort and expense for each individual

action. The class action will also allow class members to seek legal redress for a
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deprivation of their rights who may be unable to locate or afford legal counsel competent in

prosecuting FDCPA claims.

Causes of Action
Count I
Violations of the FDCPA
15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g

36. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the above paragraphs of this Class
Action Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

37 There is abundant evidence of the use of abusive, deceptive, and unfair
collection practices by many debt collectors. Abusive debt collection practices contribute
to the number of personal bankruptcies, marital instability and invasions of individual
privacy.

38. The FDCPA was enacted, in part, due to existing laws and/or procedures
being inadequate for redressing the types of injuries as set forth herein.

39.  Defendant knew or should have known that its actions violated the
FDCPA.

40, Defendant is subject to strict liability for its actions in attempting to collect
the Debt as set forth herein.

41.  The Letter can be reasonably read to have two or more different meanings,
one of which is false, confusing, and/or inaccurate as set forth herein.

42. Defendant could have taken steps necessary to bring its actions within
FDCPA compliance, but neglected to do so and failed to adequately review its actions to
ensure compliance with the law.

43. As stated above, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692g, within five (5) days after

the initial communication with a consumer in connection with the collection of any debt, a

debt collector shall, unless the information is contained in the initial communication or the
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consumer has paid the debt, send the consumer a written notice containing certain

enumerated information.
44.  Section 1692g of the FDCPA also provides:

If the consumer notifies the debt collector in writing within the thirty-
day period described in subsection (a) of this section that the debt, or
any portion thereof, is disputed, or that the consumer requests the
name and address of the original creditor, the debt collector shall cease
collection of the debt, or any disputed portion thereof, until the debt
collector obtains verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment, or
the name and address of the original creditor, and a copy of such
verification or judgment, or name and address of the original creditor,
is mailed to the consumer by the debt collector.
15 U.S.C. § 1692g(Db).

45, The purpose of the notice is to advise the consumer of his or her right to
dispute the validity of the debt and how to do so. Homer v. The Law Offices of Frederic I
Weinberg & Associates, P.C., 2:17-cv-00880-TJS (E.D. PA. Nov. 9, 2017) (citing Caprio v.
Healthcare Revenue Recovery Grp., LLC, 709 F.3d 142, 148 (3d Cir. 2013).

46. “The right to dispute a debt is the most fundamental of those set forth in §
1692g(a)...” Hooks v. Forman, Holt, Eliades & Ravin, LLC, 717 F.3d 282, 286 (2d Cir.
2013).

47.  The FDCPA does not presume that a debtor who receives a dunning letter
knows he has the right to dispute the debt and to request verification of the debt. Jacobson
v. Healthcare Fin. Servs., Inc., 516 F.3d 85, 95 (2d Cir. 2008).

48.  The debt validation notice is an important statutory right which must be
effectively conveyed to the consumer.

49. It 1s not enough to merely regurgitate the Notice onto a collection letter.

Caprio vs. Healthcare Revenue Recovery Group, LLC, 709 F.3d 142 (3d Cir. 2013).
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50.  In assessing the efficacy of the debt validation notice, courts within the
Third Circuit must do so from the perspective of the least sophisticated consumer. See
Graziano v. Harrison, 950 F.2d 107, 111 (3d Cir. 1951);

5. Within the Third Circuit, a dispute of a consumer debt (such as the Debt
herein) must be in writing in order to be effective. See Graziano, 950 F.2d at 112. A
dispute of the debt orally does not trigger the consumer’s verification right under the
FDCPA. Id.

52, In the Third Circuit, a validation notice within a dunning collection letter
that invites the consumer to call the debt collector to dispute the debt or otherwise leaves a
consumer uncertain or confused as to what she must do to effectively dispute the debt has
been deemed a violation of the FDCPA. See Caprio, 709 F.3d at 148 - 149 (3d Cir, 2013);

33, The Letter misrepresents the consumer’s rights pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1692¢.

54. The Letter does not properly inform the least sophisticated consumer that in
order to effectively dispute the debt, such dispute must be in writing.

85, Upon reading the Letter, a reasonable probability exists that a least

sophisticated consumer would be confused and/or misled as to what he or she must do to

effectively dispute the debt. A least sophisticated consumer could be confused or uncertain
as to whether a written response is required.

56.  Upon reading the Letter, a least sophisticated consumer could reasonably
believe that he or she could effectively dispute the validity of the debt by making a
telephone call rather than disputing the debt in writing (i.e., the Invite).

57 Upon reading the Letter, a least sophisticated consumer could be under the

mistaken belief that he or she could request validation of the debt by calling Defendant (i.c.,

disputing the debt orally).
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58. As such, the Letter is misleading, deceptive and/or fails to effectively

convey the validation notice required under 15 U.S.C. § 1692g.

59. A consumer, reading the Letter, may incorrectly believe he or she can

dispute the validity of the debt by merely calling Defendant, relieving the same of its

obligations to provide verification and allowing it to continue collection efforts.

60. The conduct of Defendant, its agents, servants, representatives, managers,

attorneys and/or employees, as described herein, is a violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692g given

the Letter invites the consumer to call the Defendant to dispute the debt or otherwise leaves

a consumer uncertain or confused as to what he or she must do to effectively dispute the

debt.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Melissa Travis, prays that this Honorable Court certify

this case as a class action and enter judgment for Plaintiff and the class members as

follows:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

for statutory damages awarded to Plaintiff, Melissa Travis,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(A);

for statutory damages awarded to the Class Members pursuant to
15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B);

for reasonable attorneys’ fees for all services performed by counsel
in connection with the prosecution of these claims pursuant to 15

U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(3);

for reimbursement of all costs and expenses incurred in connection
with the prosecution of these claims pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1692k(a)(3);

Such other and further relief that this Honorable Court deems just
and proper.
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Count IT
Violations of the FDCPA
15 U.S.C. § 1692¢

61.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference the above paragraphs of this Class

Action Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

62.  Because the list is non-exhaustive, a debt collection practice can be
deemed a false, deceptive, or materially misleading practice even if it does not fall within
any of the subsections of Section 1692¢ of the FDCPA.

63.  The conduct of Defendant, its agents, servants, representatives, managers,
attorneys and/or employees, as described herein, was false, misleading, and/or deceptive in
violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢ given the Letter misrepresents to the least sophisticated
consumer that he or she can call the Defendant to dispute the debt when, in reality, he or
she must send a dispute of the debt in writing for the dispute to be effective.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Melissa Travis, prays that this Honorable Court certify
this case as a class action and enter judgment for Plaintiff and the class members as
follows:

(a) for statutory damages awarded to Plaintiff, Melissa Travis,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(A);

(b) for statutory damages awarded to the Class Members pursuant to
15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B);

(c) for reasonable attorneys’ fees for all services performed by counsel
in connection with the prosecution of these claims pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(3);

(d) for reimbursement of all costs and expenses incurred in connection
with the prosecution of these claims pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1692k(a)(3);

(e) Such other and further relief that this Honorable Court deems just
and proper.
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Respectfully submi_t.ted: y

Law Offices of-Eugene'D. Frank, P.C.

By:

e
\

Eugene D. Frank, Esquire
PA ID No. 89862
500 Grant Street, Suite 2900

’ _)_,»‘Pittsburgh, PA 15219

(412) 366-4276 - office
(412) 366-4305 — fax
efrank@edf-law.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL DIVISION

Melissa Travis, an individual, on behalf of | Case No. GD-18-
herself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS.
Audit Systems Incorporated,

Defendant.

VERIFICATION

I, Eugene D. Frank, attorney for Plaintiff, Melissa Travis, am fully familiar with the
facts set forth in the within Class Action Complaint and am authorized to make this
Verification on behalf of Plaintiff. I verify that the averments of fact contained in the
foregoing Class Action Complaint are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief
based on the information supplied by Plaintiff. I understand that these averments of fact are
made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsifications to
authorities. Plaintiff’s verification will be substituted for this attorney verification upon

request,

Dated: December 6, 2018 BY:

Eugene D. Frank

/
Vi

n/‘
y4
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.

AUDIT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED Date: December 6, 2017

3696 Ulmerton Rd. @ Suite 200 e Clearwater, FL 33762 =
Toll Free Phone: (800) 741-1969 TOTAL BALANCE BUE: §1455.12

North Garolina Department of Insurance Permit Number 100606

MELISSA TRAVIS,

The below referenced account(s) have been sent to our office for collection.

SERVICE BALANCE

CREDI T NAME UNT
OR M ACCO # DATE DU
Advanced Integrated Medical 5985 04/04/16 $1485 .12

To pay online please visit our website at www.auditsystemsinc.net. Click on the Payments tab and then click on “Pay Now”.
Your Client Account Number to reference is '386.

Unless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion
thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid. If you notify this office in writing within 30 days after receiving this notice that
you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion of it, this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy of a
judgment and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. If you request of this office in writing within 30 days after
receiving this notice this office will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different from the current
creditor,

This is a communication from a debt collector altempting to collect a debt. Any information obtained will be used for this
purpose.

If the account is outstanding due to a billing error or other problem, please feel free to contact one of our service
representatives with questions at 1-800-741-1969 during business hours of Monday through Thursday 8:00am — 9:00pm EST,
and Friday 8:00am — 7:00pm EST. If this account is due to loss, theft or forgery, you may mail an affidavit of forgery to our
office.

4000NAUDTO1230
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AUDIT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
3696 Ulmerton Rd., Suite 200
Clearwater FL 33762

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

230 039751
=M T e g g o
MELISSA TRAVIS

1128 Nevada St
Pittsburgh PA 15213-1003
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I certify that this filing complies with the provisions of the Public Access Policy of the Unified
Judicial System of Pennsylvania Case Records of the Appellate and Trial Courts that require filing

confidential information and documents differently than non-confidential information and documents,

Submitted by: Law Offices of Eugene D. Frank, P.C.

Signature: i,

Name: Eugene D. Frank

Attorney No.: PA'ID # 89862

<//

I
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

MELISSA TRAVIS, an individual, on CIVIL DIVISION
behalf of herself and those similarly situated,
NO: GD-18-016034
Plaintiffs,

TYPE OF PLEADING:

PRAECIPE TO SUBSTITUTE
VERIFICATION TO CLASS
ACTION COMPLAINT
VS.
AUDIT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED,
Defendant.
FILED ON BEHALF OF:

Melissa Travis, an individual, on
behalf of herself and those
similarly situated

COUNSEL OF RECORD:
Eugene D, Frank, Esquire
PA ID # 89862

Law Offices of Eugene D. Frank, P.C.
500 Grant Street, Suite 2900
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

(412) 366-4276 (office)

(412) 366-4305 (fax)
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL DIVISION

Melissa Travis, an individual, on behalf of | Case No. GD-18-016034
herself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
Vs.
Audit Systems Incorporated,

Defendant.

PRAECIPE TO SUBSTITUTE VERIFICATION
TO CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

To the Department of Court Records:

Kindly substitute the verification in the above-captioned case. -

Respectfully submitted,

By:

Eugéﬁe D. Frank, Esquire
PA ID # 89862,

500 Grant Street, Suite 2900
Pittsburgh,/PA 15219
(412) 366-4276 Office
(412) 366-4305 Fax

Dated: December 7, 2018
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
-CIVIL DIVISION

Melissa Travis, an individual, on behalf of Case No. GD-18-
herself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS,

Audit Systems Incorporated,

Defendant.

VERIFICATION

I, Melissa Travis, verify that the averments of fact contained in the foregoing
Class Action Complaint are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, |

understand that these averments of fact arec made subject to the penalties of |8 Pa.C.S. §

4904 relating to unsworn falsifications to authorities.

elissa Travis

Dated: IQIObIJOJg
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

. (@ PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
MELISSA TRAVIS, an individual, on behalf of herself and those similarly | Audit Systems, Inc.
situated

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff  Allegheny
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

NOTE:

Attorneys (If Known)
Lauren M. Burnette
12276 San Jose Blvd., Ste. 720, Jacksonville, FL 32223
(904) 527-1172

(C) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)
Eugene D. Frank
500 Grant Street, Ste. 2900, Pittsburgh, PA 15219
(412) 366-4276

I1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) I1l. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
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Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State a1l O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 04
of Business In This State
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(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Marine Product Liability LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY 3 490 Cable/Sat TV
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O 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | O 540 Mandamus & Other | 465 Other Immigration
Other O 550 Civil Rights Actions
O 448 Education O 555 Prison Condition
3 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
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V. ORIGIN (Place an “X’” in One Box Only)

O 1 Original X2 Removed from O 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstated or [ 5 Transferred from (O 6 Multidistrict
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Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

15 U.S.C. 1692 et seq.

Brief description of cause: )
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VIl. REQUESTED IN B CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
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JS 44AREVISED June, 2009
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
THIS CASE DESIGNATION SHEET MUST BE COMPLETED

PART A
This case belongs on the ( QO Erie O Johnstown @® Pittsburgh) calendar.

1. ERIE CALENDAR - If cause of action arose in the counties of Crawford, Elk, Erie,
Forest, McKean. Venang or Warren, OR any plaintiff or defendant resides in one of said
counties.

2. JOHNSTOWN CALENDAR - If cause of action arose in the counties of Bedford, Blair,
Cambria, Clearfield or Somerset OR any plaintiff or defendant resides in one of
said counties.

3. Complete if on ERIE CALENDAR: I certify that the cause of action arose in

County and that the resides in County.
4. Complete if on JOHNSTOWN CALENDAR: 1 certify that the cause of action arose in
County and that the resides in County.

PART B (You are to check ONE of the following)

1. QO This case is related to Number . Short Caption
2. (® This case is not related to a pending or terminated case.

DEFINITIONS OF RELATED CASES:

CIVIL: Civil cases are deemed related when a case filed relates to property included in
another suit or involves the same issues of fact or it grows out of the same transactions
as another suit or involves the validity or infringement of a patent involved in another
suit EMINENT DOMAIN: Cases in contiguous closely located groups and in common ownership
groups which will lend themselves to consolidation for trial shall be deemed related.
HABEAS CORPUS & CIVIL RIGHTS: All habeas corpus petitions filed by the same individual
shall be deemed related. All pro se Civil Rights actions by the same individual shall be
deemed related.

PARTC

1. CIVIL CATEGORY (Select the applicable category).

. O Antitrust and Securities Act Cases

.0 Labor-Management Relations

. O Habeas corpus

. O civil Rights

. O Patent, Copyright, and Trademark

. C) Eminent Domain

.® All other federal question cases

-O All personal and property damage tort cases, including maritime, FELA,

Jones Act, Motor vehicle, products liability, assault, defamation, malicious
prosecution, and false arrest

9.0 Insurance indemnity, contract and other diversity cases.

10.0) Government Collection Cases (shall include HEW Student Loans (Education),
V A Overpayment, Overpayment of Social Security, Enlistment
Overpayment (Army, Navy, etc.), HUD Loans, GAO Loans (Misc. Types),
Mortgage Foreclosures, SBA Loans, Civil Penalties and Coal Mine
Penalty and Reclamation Fees.)

O~NO U A WN P

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the entries on this Case Designation
Sheet are true and correct

/s/ Lauren M. Burnette
Date: 1/28/2019

ATTORNEY AT LAW

NOTE: ALL SECTIONS OF BOTH FORMS MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE CASE CAN BE PROCESSED.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

l.(@) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

1. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

I1l.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

V. Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than
one nature of suit, select the most definitive.

V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the six boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.

VI.  Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIIl. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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